Public Document Pack

PENCIANS DADINEDSHIP	
PENSIONS PARTNERSHIP	
Minutes of the Border to Coast Joint Committee	
Tuesday, 25 March 2025 - Border to Coast Offices, Toronto Square, Leeds, LS1 2HJ	
Present Members:	Chair: Cllr George Jabbour, North Yorkshire Pension Fund
	Vice-Chair: Cllr Doug McMurdo, Bedfordshire Pension Fund
	Cllr David Sutton-Lloyd, Durham Pension Fund Cllr John Holtby, East Riding Pension Fund (as substitute for Cllr Paul Hopton) Cllr Eddie Strengiel Lincolnshire Pension Fund Cllr Jayne Dunn, South Yorkshire Pension Fund Cllr Robert Hughes, Surrey Pension Fund Cllr Doug Rathbone, Cumbria Pension Fund Cllr John Kabuye, Teesside Pension Fund Cllr Ken Dawes, Tyne & Wear Pension Fund Cllr Christopher Kettle, Warwickshire Pension Fund
Scheme Member Representatives:	Nicholas Wirz Lynda Bowen
Fund Officers:	Mike Batty, Bedfordshire Pension Fund Kate McLaughlin-Flynn, Cumbria Pension Fund Paul Cooper, Durham Pension Fund Tom Morrison, East Riding & North Yorkshire Pension Funds Jo Kempton, Lincolnshire Pension Fund George Graham, South Yorkshire Pension Fund Neil Mason, Surrey Pension Fund Paul McCann, Tyne & Wear Pension Fund Chris Norton, Warwickshire Pension Fund
Partner Fund Nominated Non Executive Directors:	Cllr David Coupe
Border To Coast Representatives:	Rachel Elwell – Chief Executive Officer Chris Hitchen – Chair Fiona Miller – Deputy Chief Executive Tim Manuel – Head of Responsible Investment Ewan McCulloch - Chief Stakeholder Officer Joe McDonnell – Chief Investment Officer

Milo Kerr - Head of Customer Relationship Management

Secretariat: Jo Stone – South Yorkshire Pensions Authority Gina Mulderrig – South Yorkshire Pensions Authority

1 APOLOGIES AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting including members of the public.

Councillor George Jabbour declared a non-pecuniary interest in relation to the nature of his campaigning work, including the way public sector pension funds manage their funds.

Councillors George Jabbour, Doug McMurdo and David Coupe declared an interest in agenda item 7 and it was resolved they would leave the meeting during the item.

Councillor Holtby declared that he was attending the meeting on this occasion as a substitute for Councillor Hopton to represent East Riding Pension Fund but that he was also a Partner Fund Nominated Non Executive Director of the Company.

The following members declared that they held pensions that were part of the Local Government Pension Scheme:

Councillor Doug McMurdo Councillor Jayne Dunn Lynda Bowen and Nicolas Wirz

The Chair introduced Councillor Robert Hughes and explained that he had taken on the role of Joint Committee member representing Surrey Pension Fund replacing Councillor Nick Harrison. The Chair expressed gratitude to Councillor Nick Harrison and to Councillor Jayne Dunn, who was in attendance representing South Yorkshire Pensions Authority on the Joint Committee for the final time, and praised their tremendous contributions to the Joint Committee.

The Chair summarised the recent meetings, training and events that had been attended by himself and members of the Joint Committee, including the two workshops that were organised to agree the LGPS: Fit for the Future consultation submissions. He also provided an update about the Joint Committee's Effectiveness Review, including the report that he had circulated. He stressed that he will continue to observe best practices as he meets with funds and pools around the country to incorporate in the work of the Committee.

2 QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

Four questions had been received from members of the public (Ms J Cattell, Ms A Whalley, Ms L Coeur-Bell and Mr Ashraf) that the Chair had agreed should be responded to. The Chair provided the responses prepared by the Border to Coast company in terms of the approach it takes as it acts in line with policies agreed by partner funds on the issues raised. A full copy of the questions and the responses is appended to the minutes.

3 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 26 NOVEMBER 2024

The minutes were received, and members were asked to approve.

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 November 2024 be agreed as a true record.

4 JOINT COMMITTEE BUDGET

Neil Mason, Chair of the Officer Operations Group, presented the report detailing the Joint Committee budget position for 2024/25.

Members requested assurance that the budget adequately covered travel costs and expenses for any members or officers who are attending meetings to represent partner funds. The Chair of the Officer Operations Group assured the Joint Committee that forecast spend on travel and expenses was contained within the budget.

RESOLVED - Members

a. Noted the budget position for 2024/25 and;b. Agreed a budget of for 2025/26 of £50,000.

5 CALENDAR OF MEETINGS

The most recently updated schedule of meetings was included in the agenda for members to note.

The Chair explained the complexities of finding dates to suit all parties and assured the Joint Committee that meeting invitations would be issued imminently to ensure maximum attendance.

RESOLVED – Members noted the scheduled dates for meetings of the Joint Committee, Border to Coast Conference and member workshops for the next three years.

6 SCHEME MEMBER REPRESENTATIVE ELECTION RESULTS

George Graham, as Secretary to the Joint Committee, presented the report to provide members with the result of the election for a Scheme Member Representative held during March 2025.

The Chair congratulated Lynda Bowen on her election as Scheme Member Representative.

RESOLVED – Members

a. Noted the results set out in the body of the report and; b. Appointed Lynda Bowen as Scheme Member Representative for a 3 year term.

Councillors Jabbour, McMurdo and Coupe left the meeting prior to the commencement of item 7.

7 PARTNER FUND NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELECTIONS

Councillor Strengiel was elected by remaining members of the Joint Committee to Chair item 7 in the absence of the Chair and Vice Chair.

George Graham, as Secretary to the Joint Committee, presented the report to set out the process for selecting candidates for nomination to the Board of the Border to Coast Pensions Partnership Ltd as Partner Fund Non-Executive Directors.

RESOLVED – Members agreed that

- a. The elections to the specified roles should take place as set out in the body of the report and;
- b. The Secretary to the Joint Committee should be authorised to transmit the nominations of successful candidates to the Company immediately following conclusion of the ballot.

Councillor Jabbour, Councillor McMurdo and Councillor Coupe returned to the meeting for the remainder of the agenda. Councillor Jabbour resumed chairing duties.

8 GOVERNANCE CHARTER ANNUAL REVIEW

Milo Kerr, Head of Customer Relationship Management, presented the annual review of the Governance Charter ("the Charter").

Members queried whether the review of the Charter was to be carried out annually. The Chief Executive Officer explained that it had been agreed not to review the Charter in the previous year due to ongoing work around the shareholder agreement but that the intent at least for the next few years was to review it annually, particularly given the potential changes that may come from the LGPS: Fit for the Future consultation.

Members asked whether there was scope to amend the Charter and include further detail on the roles and responsibilities of the Joint Committee, in particular the role of Scheme Member Representatives, and to add more detail on governance of the Border to Coast Pensions Partnership to ensure clarity and to balance the current focus of the Charter on investment.

The Chief Executive Officer proposed drafting additional wording on the roles and responsibilities of Scheme Member Representatives to be circulated to the Joint Committee for approval before the Charter was published. The Chief Executive Officer explained that any amendments to governance structure and arrangement details in the Charter would require review of the Border to Coast Shareholders' Agreement and Inter Authority Agreement and, as such, would be an intense piece of work. It was also advised that the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board plan to produce guidance on good governance in relation to new arrangements resulting from the Pensions Review and it would therefore be prudent to review the governance detail in the Charter following the implementation of the Pensions Review and the issuing of guidance rather than amending the existing Charter.

Members added that there was the expectation of Local Government Reorganisation in the administering authorities of the partner funds within the next year so reviewing the Charter again following any restructure and to include the developments in governance that follow the Pensions Review would be necessary.

RESOLVED - The Joint Committee approved the Governance Charter subject to the inclusion of additional detail on the role of Scheme Member Representatives before publication.

9 **RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT UPDATE**

Tim Manuel, Head of Responsible Investment, presented the report to provide the Joint Committee with an update on the Responsible Investment activity and reporting of Border to Coast Pensions Partnership since the previous meeting.

The Chair of South Yorkshire Pensions Authority shared with the Joint Committee that the Authority had reviewed their RI policies earlier in the month and members had subsequently asked officers to undertake a project looking at options for measures to take when engagement with companies had failed to produce the required outcomes, such as exclusion, to inform development of RI policies when next updated.

The Chair added that potential measures to follow failed engagement attempts was a noted topic of discussion amongst other LGPS committees and pools and the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum and that every fund can use their platform for influence.

The Head of RI explained that work on the annual review of Border to Coast's RI policies and the 3 Year RI Strategy was upcoming and that it was important they reflect the views of all partner funds, and he looked forward to a structured consultation with Partner Funds, including the Joint Committee, to inform robust policies and strategy.

The Chair drew the value of receiving regular updates on RI activity from the company and encouraged future discussion and communication in preparation for next reviewing their RI polices and strategy.

Members welcomed focus on RI issues but also noted that the priority of the pool and partner funds remained providing benefits to scheme members and, as such, any RI policy or strategy needed to be underpinned by good financial performance.

RESOLVED - The Committee noted the report.

Exclusion of the Public and Press RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act and the public interest not to disclose information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it.

10 DEVELOPMENT OF ADVISORY CAPABILITY

Ewan McCulloch, Chief Stakeholder Officer presented the report outlining the proposed advisory model, the timeline for implementation, and giving a summary of the potential conflicts of interest and how they will be managed.

RESOLVED – Members noted the overview of the investment advisory capability and the design principles as set out in the report.

11 ANNUAL REVIEW OF STERLING INDEX-LINKED BOND, MULTI ASSET CREDIT AND STERLING INVESTMENT GRADE CREDIT FUNDS

Neil Mason, Chair of the Officer Operations Group, presented the annual review of the Sterling Index-Linked Bond Fund, Multi-Asset Credit Fund and Sterling Investment Grade Credit Fund.

Members noted the content of the report, investment performance, the effect of the volatility of the global market and measures officers plan to take to overcome any challenges to improvement in performance.

Members asked for more detail on how the carbon footprint of the Multi Asset Credit Fund could be measured. The Chief Executive Officer explained the progress made in improving the coverage and accuracy of measuring the carbon footprint of the MAC fund and the challenges still to overcome, and assured the Joint Committee that Border to Coast were working with leaders in the market to push development and effect change.

Officers agreed to provide training outside of the meeting to further explain how the MAC fund functioned and how it can be measured.

RESOLVED – Members noted the report.

12 OVERVIEW OF POOLING PROGRESS

Milo Kerr, Head of Customer Relationship Management, presented the report to give the Joint Committee an overview on the progress of pooling including Partner

Fund engagement, transition progress and plans, proposition launches and collective voice, as well as the risks to pooling.

RESOLVED – Members noted the report.

13 UPDATE ON EMERGING MATTERS

Rachel Elwell, Chief Executive Officer, gave the Joint Committee a verbal update on developments regarding the Pensions Review. It was explained that senior Border to Coast officers had met with the Minister for Pensions to discuss the pool's recent submission setting out the partnership's plans to meet the requirements set out in the LGPS: Fit for the Future consultation. The Chief Executive Officer commented that the meeting had been productive with Border to Coast Officers representing the whole partnership and detailing its specific position and vision. It is expected all pools will receive a response to the Pensions Review consultation in the coming weeks.

The Chief Executive Officer explained that Border to Coast was committed to ensuring it was in the best position to implement any changes and be resilient and sustainable whilst continuing to provide good performance. It was also explained that there was communication and collaboration with other LGPS pools. The Chair of Border to Coast Pensions Partnership added that preserving a good working culture and relationship with all funds was also a high priority.

Members thanked officers for their ongoing work in this area and acknowledged the challenges faced. It was requested the Joint Committee continue to be kept informed and involved with all future developments. Officers assured members that they would be kept updated and also offered assurance that the priority of the pool was serving scheme members and providing benefits and that assets would be managed to prioritise performance throughout any changes.

RESOLVED – Members noted the update.

Meeting closed 13:44

CHAIR

This page is intentionally left blank

Minute Item 2



Border to Coast Joint Committee – 25 March 2025

Public Questions

Question 1 – Ms. J Cattell and Ms. H Smith

To the Chair of Border to Coast

My question to the last meeting of Border to Coast not only expressed my horror at your investments in the arms industry but also suggested a review of your policy in relation to your investments in arms. You said as I was aware that Border to Coast has a weapons exclusion policy. I don't know when this was last reviewed but I am proposing that it be reviewed again particularly considering the situation where we are facing a genocide and the ongoing bombardment of populations, and human rights abuses in many other countries including Yemen and Sudan

I also asked if you would be considering more investments in the many products that are more likely to support peaceful advancement.

So my question was about your willingness to consider a change of strategy but instead I sensed a complacency in your answer. In a situation where the threat of wars grows every day I do not understand why you might not view these issues as materially significant.

Just to take one of the companies you invest in, BAE systems. While not suggesting this company is involved in direct human rights abuses, it is clear BAE Systems has had few qualms selling its products in the last decade to the authorities of states that have perpetrated well-documented human rights violations.

Human Rights Watch reported and confirmed sales by BAE Systems to states across the world that are known to have repeatedly committed human rights violations. These were evidenced in Human Rights Watch's World Report 2023.

I am particularly concerned about the use of explosive weapons. Since 2010 Action on Armed Violence (AOAV) a global explosive violence monitor found that globally when such weapons were deployed in populated areas, over 90% of those reported killed or injured were civilians, – a pattern consistent across conflict and location. The highest recorded civilian harm 2013-2023 to civilians from explosive weapons and sold by BAE systems was in Israel. The use of explosive weapons and the destruction to lives and infrastructure has been evident to us all in pictures from Gaza over the last year. Action on Armed Violence (AOAV) reported "while the exact role of BAE Systems' equipment in the deployment of explosive munitions is unclear, AOAV findings raise concern surrounding the deployment of indiscriminate explosives from one of BAE's biggest end customers – Israel.

Page 9



Particular concerns have also been raised regarding the role the BAE joint-venture with Lockhead Martin and Northrop Grumman and the role the F-35 aircraft have played in these air attacks. While we cannot know for certain

what particular aircraft are used in attacks such as those on Gaza, BAE themselves give the aircraft's designation as a multi-role fighter, capable of both ground strike attacks and air defence/superiority combat.

Furthermore, the potential use of this weapon in air attacks over Gaza is reportedly supported by precedent. The Independent, reporting in 2021, claimed that F-35s were used in airstrikes resulting in the deaths of 232 civilians, including 65 children.

I am asking you to take a wider view of the role of companies like BAE and in considering the role they play in destruction, death and human rights abuses review whether they are suitable companies to be investing in, particularly considering the unfolding genocide in Gaza..

Will you provide a full account to members of the pension scheme of the amount being invested in ALL arms companies and the due diligence carried out before making such investments.

Response

Border to Coast are transparent about their investments and publicly disclose all holdings for each of their funds, including any investments in the defence sector. This also includes the amount invested. This can all be found by looking for "fund holdings" under the publications section of the Border to Coast website. The link is provided here... Publications - Border To Coast - Reports.

The holdings data is provided separately for each fund and is refreshed half-yearly. The current holdings information shows our investments as at 30 September 2024, and will next be updated to show holdings at 31 March 2025.

For due diligence and risk management processes, Border to Coast use a range of data providers to ensure that material issues are considered. For human rights indicators, Border to Coast use data sources that provide information and analysis around controversies companies are involved in, as well as an interpretation of whether companies are breaching the requirements of the UN Global Compact. Material financial and ESG related risks are considered in the production of research and in the investment, decision making process by our investment management team.

Question 2 – Ms. A Whalley on behalf of

Mr S Ashton



Ms. D Binch

Ms. L Coeur-Belle

Mr T Grigg

Ms. G Hanson

Ms. J Palmer

Mr. R Tassell

The Institute and Faculty of Actuaries and University of Exeter published a report in January 2025 called "Planetary Solvency". It urges a complete re-framing of how we assess and take action on climate risk, by acknowledging that our economies fundamentally depend on the Earth's ecosystems that provide our food, water, energy, raw materials; these are not replaceable and this means we need to recognise our dependency on these systems and manage our activities to be within planetary boundaries. Ignoring this is to ignore the impact of climate change on financial markets and investments

In this new report, pension experts say investment has been based on "widely used but deeply flawed assessments of the economic impact of climate change" –Institute and Faculty of Actuaries (16 January report <u>here</u>)

We think the report is essential reading for all those managing and making the types of decisions that will have consequences for the well-being and future interests of the Funds' beneficiaries.

We understand that it is generally accepted that climate scenario analysis (CSA) currently in wide use, significantly underestimate climate risk (eg excluding factors like "tipping points") and therefore our question is:

How will you ensure that this revised approach to climate risk assessment outlined in "Planetary Solvency" will be used by your investment advisers when drawing up future CSAs?

Response

The commissioning of climate scenario analysis as part of investment strategy reviews and actuarial valuations is a matter for each of the 11 partner funds to consider as part of procuring the relevant work. Partner funds are aware of the IFOA report, and some funds have undertaken briefing sessions with members of their Pension Committee, or equivalent to consider the issues raised.

This remains a developing field using assumptions about unpredictable matters over a long period of time and partner funds consider the results as directional information on the sensitivity of a Pension Fund's portfolio to different climate scenarios. These are of

Page 11

INTERNAL



course considered along with all the other factors which have the potential to impact on investment returns.

Partner funds welcome the continued development of climate scenario analysis to support management of the risks associated with climate change and will be required to undertake this as part of the forthcoming actuarial valuation under the relevant actuarial standards.

Question 3 – Ms. L Coeur-Belle

In Spring 2024 Surrey Pension Fund commissioned an analysis to consider what potential impact exclusion of the 25 largest fossil fuel related companies from the investable universe might have on expected returns.

This work was undertaken by Mercer in collaboration with BCPP and entitled Fossil Fuel Exclusion Impact Analysis June 2024 (item 38/24 Responsible investment update, Annexe 3.

Surrey FF

Given the anticipated failure to hold global warming to 1.5 degrees it is imperative that pension funds take decisions on fossil fuel investments with all available relevant information. Do the administrating authorities within this pool agree to commission a joint analysis which sets out the potential impact both individually and as a pool to assist with future decision making?

Response

Partner Funds have no current plans to jointly commission such analysis. However, individual funds will have to undertake climate impact analysis as part of the forthcoming actuarial valuation and may choose to undertake further work as part of their investment strategy reviews.

Question 4 – Mr M Ashraf

As-Salaam Alaikum

Good Morning Chair, Councillors, Directors and Officers,

Are there any UK laws, that Borders to Coast, the Chair, the Councillors, the Directors, and the officers are not subject to?

If so could you provide details?



The rest of my question will be in regards to how the decisions are actually made, by whom and the power relationships between the various parties.

So I would like to ask how much control do the Borders to Coast officers have and how titular are the councillors?

What role does the Chair and or the officers play in the decisions and the processes of the councillors? Can the chair and or officers frustrate the decisions of the councillors? How can the councillors overcome any attempts by the Chair or the officers to frustrate their decisions.

Are the councillors genuinely able to affect change and has this ever occurred previously?

What in detail, are the decisions and processes the councillors that are on this board need to make, in order to enact actual change?

Thank you in advance to the officers for taking the time to answer my question.

Response

The Border to Coast Operating Company and the individual Administering Authorities are subject to relevant laws.

The Joint Committee is the collaborative vehicle through which individual Partner Funds provide collective oversight of the investment performance of the Company.

The Committee is constituted from the 11 Partner Fund pension committee chairs, or another appointed councillor nominated by the Partner Fund. The Chair of the Committee, who is a Councillor, is elected by the members of the Joint Committee.

The Committee does not have any delegated authority and therefore any matters requiring decision must be considered and approved by each Partner Fund pension committee. As a result, decisions on policy and whether to invest in particular products are for the individual Administering Authorities, which are represented by Councillors, who are supported by qualified officers and advisers. In the context of the question, it is these debates by Partner Funds that will result in change.

Separately, Border to Coast has a Chair of the Board. The Board's function is to direct and supervise the affairs of the Company.

This page is intentionally left blank